
 1 

 Ashland Board of Health Meeting Minutes 

Ashland Town Hall, 101 Main Street, Ashland, MA 

Selectmen’s Meeting Room, 7:00 P.M. 

July 7, 2016 

 

Jon A.  Fetherston, Chairman    Mary Mortensen, Member 

Charles Legassey, Vice-Chairman   Koduvayur Narayana, Member 

Judith Margulies, Clerk    Mark Oram, M.P.H., Agent/Director  

  

Members Present   

Jon Fetherston, Charles Legassey, Judith Margulies, Mary Mortensen and Koduvayur Narayana  
 

Others Present 
Mark Oram, Health Agent / Director 
Laura Clifford, Administrative Secretary 
Michael Herbert, Town Manager 
John F. Blake 
Dona Walsh, resident 
Mark S. Walsh, resident 
Mark A. Walsh, resident 
Mark Dassoni, resident 
S.J. Morgan, resident 
Ed Burman, resident 
David Caligaris, The Green Company 
 

Call to Order   

Mr. Fetherston called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m., noting that the meeting was being audio and video 
recorded live on WACA-TV, and that the agenda was subject to change. 
 

Citizen’s Participation 

Mark Dassoni inquired if the representative of the Division of Open Government would be attending 
tonight’s meeting, Mr. Fetherston responded that that representative will be attending an upcoming 
meeting in the future.   
 
Mr. Dassoni inquired if anyone on the Board had any pending Open Meeting Law complaints against 
the Board. Ms. Margulies said she does have two pending matters. Mr. Dassoni suggested that Ms. 
Margulies should recuse herself since she has a pending complaint herself. Mr. Fetherston said there 
have been many Open Meeting Laws filed in Town which was why he thought it would be a good 
idea to invite a representative from Division of Open Government.  Mr. Fetherston stated that tonight 
would just be recapping Counsel’s opinion on the matter, and it would be Ms. Margulies’ decision to 
recuse herself. Ms. Margulies said that she communicated with the Division of Open Government and 
was told that they don’t typically come to Boards like this, and that there is no problem with her 
participation.  



 2 

Lisa Kaufman asked the Board what has been done as a follow up to the issues previously brought 
before the Board regarding her concerns as to the Rail Transit District housing project, and if the 
testing results have been received. Ms. Margulies responded that it is being selective to allow only 
certain citizen’s participation; Mr. Narayana suggested removing the condition on the agenda 
regarding citizen’s participation. Mr. Fetherston agreed that is a good suggestion.  Ms. Kaufman was 
aware of the disclaimer on the agenda but thought it important that this be brought up tonight due to 
the time-sensitive nature.  Mr. Fetherston allowed the discussion.  
 
Mr. Herbert said that the studies have been received and are being reviewed from both a technical and 
legal perspective before they are released to the public, to make sure everything has been addressed. 
Mr. Herbert said it should be available by mid-next week.  
 
Mr. Oram said their group’s concerns were forwarded to the Massachusetts Department of Public 
Health, Bureau of Environmental Health Assessment, the Division which did the first study in 2006.  
Mr. Oram offered to give Ms. Kaufman the name of the contact person.  
 
Mr. Narayana asked about the relevance of Chapter 41, Section 81U as it relates to this housing 
project, Mr. Fetherston said we can talk to Attorney Mead on this matter. 
 
Ms. Kaufman asked Mr. Oram if he has had any contact with the EPA/Nyanza contact person, Dan 
Keefe. Mr. Oram responded that Dan Keefe attended a meeting with Town Management, and added 
that that the results of that meeting are part of the final report, which will be disclosed, as Mr. Herbert 
stated. 
 
Mr. Herbert said that EPA had their own report commissioned on the blasting effects, which has been 
released and is available to the public, adding that the Health Agent is the defined liaison to the EPA.  
Ms. Margulies asked if communications are coming to the Board of Health, because she has heard 
that the Board of Health is not doing its job on Nyanza. Ms. Margulies said that the Board is not in the 
loop, and needs to work on communication. Mr. Oram said he would have disclosed if there was 
communication that needed to be brought to the Board, and as the Health Agent, represents the Board 
to do the administrative work he was hired to do.  
  

Mark S. Walsh wanted to speak to the Board regarding the Health Agent, who, over the past few 
decades, he has called upon.  Mr. Walsh stated that no one has been more professional, approachable 
or more prompt than Mr. Oram.  Mr. Walsh said that he is concerned with the way the resources are 
being tied up, and there are many others who feel this way. 
 

466 Chestnut Street  

David Caligaris, owner of The Green Company, LLC, informed the Board that after attempting to 
drill in the two areas previously approved by the Board of Health for irrigation wells at the Lanterns at 
Ashland Woods project, they encountered water on the first, but the second was dry.  Mr. Caligaris is 
requesting to go just left of the entry of the second hole, adding that the new location is not close to 
any other wells.  Mr. Narayana asked if there is enough water in the first hole where they did get 
water.  Mr. Caligaris said that would not be sufficient. Mr. Caligaris stated that the distance between 
the wells is approximately 500 feet, and will go down very deep.  Mr. Oram recommended the Board 
approve the change to the irrigation wells as presented on the plan.  Mr. Narayana made a motion to 



 3 

approve the irrigation well request as presented with the same conditions that were given prior.  Mr. 
Legassey seconded the motion.  The motion was approved 5-0. 
 
Ms. Margulies inquired, and Mr. Oram responded, that, as long as we are given materials and plans, 
we will provide copies to the Board Members prior to the Board of Health meeting.  Mr. Herbert said 
this should be made as a requirement to applicants as a policy, to provide a certain number of 
documents and appropriate documentation.   
      

Request from Parent of Camper to approve walking home from camp 

 Mr. Fetherston read a letter/request to the Board from the parent of a camper attending a camp in 
Ashland which asked for permission for that child to walk home due to the mother’s work schedule.  
The Board agreed it was inappropriate to vote in support of this request due to liability.  Mr. 
Fetherston made a motion that the Board does not support the request to allow the camper to walk 
home. Mrs. Mortensen seconded the motion.  The motion to deny the request was approved 5-0. 
 
Old and New Business 

Updates from the Town Manager to review Board Member’s Goals 

Mr. Herbert said he strongly supports seeking accreditation for the Board of Health. Mr. Narayana 
would like to see more support for Mr. Oram, possibly a full-time food inspector.  Ms. Margulies 
agreed she would like to see accreditation, and noted that there needs to be a balance to make sure it is 
Ashland-based, based on Ashland needs. Mrs. Mortensen would like to see training for Members.  
Mr. Legassey expressed concern of the cost; discussion continued regarding funding.  Mr. Fetherston 
stated that this Board has become dysfunctional, that, realistically, accreditation cannot happen with 
the current state the Board, and getting the Board back on track needs to be the objective. The Board 
discussed having a Board retreat.  Ms. Margulies stated that one reason minutes don’t get approved is 
because they’re at the bottom of the agenda, and should be in a modifiable format.  Ms. Margulies 
said the minutes are not accurate.  Mr. Herbert said minutes has only recently become an issue, he 
doesn’t want minutes to derail the conversation. 
 
Mr. Herbert said he is interested in possibly regionalizing the Health Agent / Director position which 
would involve the hiring of a full-time benefited employee. The Town would enter into an inter-
municipal agreement with another community who would pay us for that person’s time and contribute 
to the benefit costs.  Mr. Herbert said, with the Board’s consent, he will approach a couple of 
neighboring towns to discuss regionalizing health agent services, Mark would be the Director, and the 
hired person would be the Assistant.  Discussion continued regarding a regional health agent position 
and whether it would affect quality.  Mr. Narayana made a motion that the Board request the Town 
Manager, Michael Herbert, to explore the possibility of regionalizing some of the services, including 
the pros and cons, and the costs, and report back to the Board of Health.  Mrs. Mortensen seconded 
the motion.  The motion was approved 5-0. 
 
Mr. Herbert wants to make sure that all Boards and Committees get their material in order to make 
policy decisions. Mr. Oram said that we try to get Members their agenda and meeting documents 
material by Thursday afternoon, but there is a lot of work in our department and that Laura is also 
working for the other Community Development Departments.   
 
Mr. Herbert said that we need to move towards a more data driven model, and acknowledged Mr. 
Oram as a leader in this area with the Food Inspection software.  Mr. Herbert asked the Board to send 



 4 

a prioritized list of items they would like to see in a database. Mr. Oram stated that he has been 
looking into “tough book” tablets, which are taken out on the field.  Mr. Fetherston asked Members to 
send him a prioritized list by Monday if they have suggestions for information they would like to see 
digitized, which he will forward to Mr. Herbert.   
 
Mr. Oram explained that our intern has been working on a poster board presentation to the Board 
regarding Opioid abuse, Mr. Oram said Opioid abuse is a major public health issue, Mr. Herbert said 
it is the public health issue.  Ms. Margulies said that she went to a four day conference sponsored by 
Decisions at Every Turn, and this will take work over many years, and resources need to be out there, 
possibly on our website.  Mr. Herbert said that the Assistant Town Manager is looking at the Opioid 
abuse issue also, and the possibility of consolidating the Human Services Department so that persons 
of any age can easily access any services they need for support under one umbrella.  Mr. Fetherston 
asked Mr. Herbert if the Board could be updated by the police and fire departments, that this could be 
helpful.   
 
Mr. Fetherston asked Mr. Herbert who is Robert Murchison, because this name has been brought up 
by one of the Selectmen.  Mr. Herbert responded that he is a person who has had interest in Mr. 
Oram’s work hours and practices, who he believes initiated the investigation in Sherborn. Ms. 
Margulies said he’s not involved in the IG report because he’s not on the IG staff; he’s an individual 
who lives in Sherborn.  Mr. Fetherston thanked Mr. Herbert for coming.  Mr. Oram stated that 
everyone received a letter from his attorney regarding Robert Murchison, and that, for two years, he 
has been put under total dismay by this person.  
 
Mr. Herbert thinks it will be a good idea to meet quarterly with the Board’s Chairperson, if the Board 
Members agree.  Ms. Margulies would like to see Mr. Herbert attend more meetings.  The Board 
again discussed having a retreat, which would be treated like a public meeting.  Mr. Fetherston made 
a motion that he will work with Mr. Herbert in setting a date and facilitator for a Board of Health 
retreat.  Mrs. Mortensen seconded the motion.  The motion was approved 5-0.   
 
Open Meeting Law Complaint  

Mr. Fetherston said that Town Counsel drafted a response to Mr. Morgan’s complaint. Mr. Fetherston 
stated that we received an allowance for a request for an Extension of Time.  Ms. Margulies said that 
she had requested that the Board resolve this directly with Mr. Morgan, avoiding the legal costs and 
resources.  Mr. Narayana said a vote was taken at the June 21st meeting to have Town Counsel 
review, but the vote failed 2-0-1.  Mr. Oram this Open Meeting Law complaint was filed with the 
Town Clerk and automatically goes to the Town Counsel.  Ms. Margulies questioned if this is a Board 
policy.  Mr. Oram said he would confirm this with the Town Clerk. Ms. Margulies said the Open 
Meeting Law requires a vote if a third party is to represent the Board on the matter, Mr. Oram asked 
for a reference number so we can verify, Ms. Margulies said it is an interpretation.   
 
Mr. Fetherston went through each violation of the Complaint with Mr. Morgan and the Board, and 
read each item on Attorney Mead’s draft response. Mr. Morgan stated that he received a 6-page 
inaccurate response from Town Counsel.  Mr. Morgan stated that he would like to resolve this, and 
said it would be easy to resolve.   
 
Mr. Morgan said that he requested a copy of the May 24, 2016 Board of Health draft minutes.  Mr. 
Oram gave Mr. Morgan a copy of the draft minutes and noted they have are posted online on the 
website. The Board continued the discussion with Mr. Morgan regarding his Open Meeting Law 



 5 

Complaint.  Mr. Fetherston made a motion that we will make every effort to have draft minutes 
posted within ten days of the meeting on the Town’s website.  Ms. Margulies seconded the motion.  
Discussion continued.  The motion was approved 5-0.   
 
Mr. Morgan said he would like to see better agendas, Boards stick to their agendas and minutes get 
produced, it is not a big deal.  Mr. Fetherston said that the Board will have a retake of the vote of 
confidence of Mr. Oram at the July 19, 2016 meeting to clear the violation regarding voting on an 
item not on the agenda.  Mrs. Mortensen said that Mr. Morgan could have said this at the time of the 
meeting and it could have been discussed then, that it didn’t need to go through this route.   
 
Mr. Fetherston asked Mr. Morgan if he wants the Board to follow up with Attorney Mead, or if he is 
going to.  Ms. Margulies agreed with Mr. Morgan that going with Attorney Mead’s response is not a 
good choice, and would rather find an alternative other than this document.  Mrs. Mortensen said this 
sounds like double-talk, that the appropriate thing to do is have the Chair discuss with Attorney Mead 
what was brought to us and get it right, adding that is what Attorney Mead is here for.   
 
Mr. Narayana asked if we can work with Mr. Morgan’s draft, which Mr. Morgan said could be 
written up and voted on tonight. Mr. Morgan and the Board went through Mr. Morgan’s draft 
response.  Mr. Fetherston asked who this response should be drafted to, Mr. Narayana said to the 
Attorney General. Mrs. Mortensen said this should be brought to Attorney Mead. Mr. Fetherston 
agreed, adding that Mr. Morgan brings up good points, but would not want to negate all of Attorney 
Mead’s time and effort.  Mrs. Mortensen agreed. Mr. Fetherston said he would bring it to Attorney 
Mead and would copy the Board.   
 
Mr. Narayana discussed with the Board having a booth at the Farmer’s Market on August 27th, and 
September 24th.    The Board discussed availability. 
 
Health Agent / Director’s Report 

FY16 and FY17 Budget, Revolving Fund – Update 

Mr. Oram informed the Board that they have finalized FY16, we are now in the FY17 budget, we are 
returning some funds to the Town, including nursing services, close to $8,000.00.  This money will be 
used for shingles vaccine which has already been purchased.  Ms. Margulies asked why shingles, and 
who made those decisions.  Mr. Oram said they were based on discussions with the Health Nurse and 
past years of review.  Mr. Oram said that purchasing shingles has been discussed with the Board.  
 
Mr. Oram stated that we received $20,400.00 from Ameresco which will be applied to the landfill 
reshaping and the other issues that have developed.  Mr. Oram said he is grateful to the Board for 
understanding that we are weak in the area of conferences and training, and personnel.   
 
Mrs. Mortensen inquired and Mr. Oram responded that we are going quickly with sharps container 
and are down to about 400.   
 
Update on Landfill, Beaver Remediation 

Mr. Oram received a letter on June from DEP regarding Corrective Action Requirements, which the 
Board has received a copy of.   
 



 6 

Mr. Oram stated that we also received a cost analysis from ECS for approximately $33,000.00, but 
this contract may be going out for bid.   
 
Mr. Narayana questioned why the gas permeation issue occurred, Mr. Oram discussed the possibility 
of beavers building a dam and causing the water table to rise. Mr. Oram said the Town had the 
beavers removed, and the water table has come down considerably. Rain also could have caused this, 
as well as deeper probes.  Mr. Oram said DEP is now requiring monthly monitoring. 
 
Acceptance of Minutes, May 24, June 7, June 21 and June 27, 2016 

Ms. Margulies went through some items she believed to be inaccurate from the May 24th meeting 
minutes, and stated the minutes should be more summarized. Ms. Margulies said that her statements 
in the minutes are abbreviated or eliminated, and other individual’s comments are not.  Mr. Legassey 
stated if there are only 2 or 3 changes, that would be fine, but substantial changes should be submitted 
in advance by email to the Board.  Mr. Legassey stated that writing changes in during the meeting will 
cause confusion.  Ms. Margulies said the minutes are too descriptive and would like to see the format 
changed. Mrs. Mortensen and Mr. Fetherston agreed they are fine the way they are. Mr. Legassey said 
they represent what goes on, and the votes that were taken.  Mr. Narayana said he has found 
inaccuracies, and that he has asked Lisa Mead how he can make sure the minutes are accurate. 
Discussion continued regarding the content and accuracy of minutes. 
 
Mr. Fetherston made a motion, in the best interest to the Town of Ashland, that we do not change the 
way we do our meeting minutes, that Laura continues to do our meeting minutes.  Mrs. Mortensen 
seconded the motion.  The motion was approved 3-1-1 (Ms. Margulies opposed, Mr. Narayana 
abstained). 
 
Mr. Legassey made a motion to accept the May 24, 2016 meeting minutes with the correction to page 
7 noted earlier, Mrs. Mortensen seconded the motion.  Mr. Narayana abstained because he feels they 
are inaccurate.  Ms. Margulies also feels they are inaccurate.  The motion was approved 3-1-1 (Ms. 
Margulies opposed, Mr. Narayana abstained). 
 
Mr. Legassey made a motion to accept the June 7, 2016 meeting minutes as presented but with a 
correction to the date on the list of documents on page 7.  Mrs. Mortensen seconded.  Ms. Margulies 
stated they are inaccurate as written.  The motion was approved 3-1-1 (Ms. Margulies opposed, Mr. 
Narayana abstained). 
 
Mr. Legassey and Mrs. Mortensen were both not in attendance at the June 21, 2016 meeting, nor had 
they had the opportunity to watch the meeting and therefore could not vote on this matter.  Mr. 
Fetherston made a motion to approve the meeting minutes of June 21, 2016.   Mr. Narayana asked to 
table to the next meeting.  No second on the motion.  The motion failed. Mr. Narayana made a motion 
to table acceptance of these minutes to the next meeting.  Ms. Margulies seconded the motion.  
Motion failed 2-1 (Mr. Fetherston opposed). Ms. Margulies inquired as to the ‘food establishment 
report’ stated on the list of documents attached to the minutes.  Mr. Oram said we would rename the 
document to say ‘food establishment data/spreadsheet’.  Mr. Fetherston asked if the Board would like 
to take action on these minutes. No response. 
 
Mr. Narayana said the June27th minutes were just received, and he has not had time to review. Mr. 
Oram noted that we are still waiting for item #4 on the document list.  Mr. Fetherston suggested a 



 7 

motion to table the acceptance of the minutes. Mrs. Mortensen so moved the motion. Mr. Legassey 
seconded the motion. The motion was approved 5-0. 
 
Future Board of Health Meetings, for discussion: July 19 and August 16 

The Board will next meet on Thursday, July 19th and August 16th.   
 
Mr. Fetherston asked, and Mr. Oram responded, that he could possibly get in touch with Robert 
Murchison by contacting the Town Administrator in Sherborn or the Town Manager here, both who 
are getting emails from him.  Mr. Fetherston said it is upsetting to him to hear that he has been 
causing our health agent distress for two years and would like to invite him to a meeting.  Mr. 
Narayana passed around copies of emails and items for future agendas. Mrs. Mortensen made a 
motion to invite Robert Murchison to a meeting.  Mr. Legassey asked if this would need to be in 
executive session. Mr. Fetherston said he would look into that. Ms. Margulies stated that 
administrative oversight is in the hands of Michael Herbert, that this could be interfering with the 
administrative function of the Town Manager.  Mr. Fetherston responded that he wants to have a 
conversation with the man who is causing grief to our Health Agent; it is this Board’s job to make 
sure Mr. Oram has proper working conditions so that he can do an effective job.  Ms. Margulies 
disagreed, suggesting it is a personnel matter, not under the Board’s purview. The motion was 
approved 4-1 (Ms. Margulies opposed).  Mr. Oram said the letter sent to the Board from his attorney 
clearly addresses the last 2 ½ years.   
 
Ms. Margulies would like to see the present policies and procedures for the vaccination program, and 
the qualifications of the persons administering the vaccinations, on a future agenda.  Mr. Oram said 
that the Public Health Nurse, together with the Health Department, have established protocols with 
the State and Merck Pharmaceuticals.  Mr. Oram said Nancy Cleary should be ready by the August 
meeting to introduce the program to the Board. Mr. Oram would like to have Mrs. Mortensen’s 
involvement if possible.   
 
Ms. Margulies asked if it was possible to have an additional meeting, before August 19th.  Mr. Oram 
said this is a summer schedule but would schedule an additional meeting if necessary.  Mr. Fetherston 
asked Mr. Oram to reach out to Fire and Police Departments regarding the Opioid issues.   
 
Adjournment 

Mr. Legassey made a motion to adjourn.  Mrs. Mortensen seconded the motion. The motion was 
approved 5-0. The meeting adjourned at 10:35 P.M. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 8 

 
ASHLAND BOARD OF HEALTH 

DOCUMENTS REVIEWED AT THE 7/6/2016 MEETING 

(All items stored in the Board of Health files unless otherwise noted) 

 

1. 466 Chestnut Street – Plans and Application from The Green Company, LLC 

2. Request from Parent of camper to approve walking home from Skyhawks Camp - letter 

3.     Open Meeting Law Complaint –  

a. Draft response by Lisa Mead 

b. Draft response by Stephen Morgan 

c. Attorney General Notice of Allowance on Motion for Extension of Time 

       4.    FY16 and FY17 Budget, Revolving Fund – Update 

5.  Draft Minutes, May 24, 2016, June 7, June 21 and June 27, 2016 

6. Emails and suggestions for Agendas, distributed by Member K.G. Narayana 

7. Audio Recording of Meeting Available 

 

 


